
 

 

Environmental Policy Board / August 21, 2017 

Page 1 of 5 

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY BOARD  

CITY OF RAMSEY 

ANOKA COUNTY 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 

 

On Monday, August 21, 2017, the Environmental Policy Board (EPB) met in the COR Conference 

Room at the Ramsey Municipal Center, 7550 Sunwood Drive N.W., Ramsey, Minnesota. 

 

Members Present: Chairperson Thomas Stodola 

   Board Member Colleen Anderson 

   Board Member Jane Covart 

   Board Member Michael Hiatt 

Board Member Lucas Trossen 

   Board Member Michael Valentine 

 

Members Absent:  Board Member Reid Bernard 

 

Also Present:  City Planner Chris Anderson 

   Brian Burandt, Connexus Energy 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

Chairperson Stodola called the meeting to order at 6:32 p.m. 

 

2. CITIZEN INPUT 

 

None. 

 

3. APPROVE AGENDA 

 

Motion by Board Member Hiatt and seconded by Board Member Covart to approve the agenda as 

submitted. 

 

Motion carried.  Voting Yes: Chairperson Stodola, Board Member Hiatt, Covart, Anderson, 

Trossen, and Valentine.  Voting No: None.  Absent:  Board Member Bernard. 

 

4. APPROVE MINUTES 

 

4.01: Approve Meeting Minutes Dated July 17, 2017 

 

Motion by Board Member Covart and seconded by Board Member Trossen to approve the regular 

meeting minutes dated July 17, 2017. 

 

Motion carried.  Voting Yes: Chairperson Stodola, Board Member Covart, Trossen, Anderson, 

Covart, Hiatt, Trossen, and Valentine.  Voting No: None.  Absent:  Board Member Bernard. 

 

5. POLICY BOARD BUSINESS 

 



 

 

Environmental Policy Board / August 21, 2017 

Page 2 of 5 

5.01: Consider Request for a Zoning Amendment and Conditional Use Permit for the  

 Installation of a Solar Garden at the Property Legally Described as Lot 3, Block 1, 

 River Crossing Addition (Project No. 17-135); Case of Connexus Energy  

 

City Planner Anderson presented the staff report.  He stated that Connexus Energy has applied for 

a Zoning Amendment and a Conditional Use Permit to construct a new solar garden on the property 

legally described as Lot 3, Block 1, River Crossing Addition.  He stated that the subject property 

is owned by Anoka County and would be leased by Connexus Energy.  He stated that when the 

City contemplated solar energy systems several years ago, the Zoning Code was amended to 

consider ground or building mounted solar energy systems as permitted accessory use in any 

zoning district; however, it did not account for or address the possibility of a solar array being the 

principal use of a property, as would be the case with the Connexus proposal.   

 

Brian Burandt stated that the proposed site would be 14 times the size of the existing solar array 

on the Connexus campus and would generate the power supply for 600 homes, noting that energy 

would remain in Ramsey.  He stated that there are tax credits available for the solar system, battery 

system, and storage system which decrease the project costs.  He explained that the midday solar 

peak and later peak of energy use, the storage system will allow that energy to be stored until the 

use is needed.  He stated that Connexus approached municipalities to determine interest and there 

are three willing partners with land available through Anoka County, St. Francis, and the National 

Sports Center.  He stated that this would be the largest multi-site community solar array in the 

midwest.  He provided additional details on the proposed sites which would include fencing and 

pollinator habitat.  He stated that they have learned key takeaways from the solar array on the 

Connexus campus.   

 

Board Member Trossen asked the size of the battery and average lifespan. 

 

Mr. Burandt provided additional details on the size and lifespan of the batteries.  He explained 

how the batteries would be charged and store energy in order to disburse the energy during peak 

demand times. 

 

Board Member Valentine asked for information on fire safety. 

 

Mr. Burandt provided additional details on the batteries and noted that the batteries are safe and 

the price of batteries have actually been reduced because of the competition that has been brought 

to the market.  He confirmed that there would be fire suppression as well.   

 

Board Member Covart asked if the members would be offered a buy-in on the project. 

 

Mr. Burandt explained that Connexus is leasing the land through municipalities and the energy 

will be used to lower the costs to all Connexus customers rather than offering a buy-in.  He stated 

that there is not an issue with glare.  He stated that after 25 years the equipment would be removed 

and the site would be restored for Anoka County to do what they wish with it. 

 

City Planner Anderson stated that he spoke with the solar developer and was assured that the 

developer would create a decommissioning plan for the removal of the equipment and restoration 

of the land that would occur after that leased period expires.   

 



 

 

Environmental Policy Board / August 21, 2017 

Page 3 of 5 

Mr. Burandt stated that the storage developer has not yet been named but provided examples of 

storage containers that could be used in the solar array.  He noted that the storage containers would 

be located on the back side of the swale if you were looking from Highway 10. 

 

City Planner Anderson stated that staff does not have a final Site Plan as that would be contingent 

on final site work that is being done.  He stated that part of the mapping process that was done in 

2007 to prepare for the Comprehensive Plan update identified this land as Public/Quasi Public but 

the reguiding of the land never occurred.  He stated that currently the property is zoned as R-

2/medium residential.  He stated that staff believes that it would be appropriate to rezone the 

property as Public/Quasi-Public, especially because the County owns the property.  He noted that 

substations are allowed in that zoning district and while a solar array is not a specified use, it would 

be similar.  He stated that staff would recommend adding a text amendment to the zoning district 

to allow solar energy systems as a principal use with the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit.  He 

noted that a Conditional Use Permit could then be used to allow the solar array.  He stated that this 

would move forward to the Planning Commission for a public hearing at their September 7th 

meeting and would then move to the City Council.   

 

Mr. Burandt stated that Connexus originally wanted to have a showcase on their property, as they 

have 18 acres of land but staff was hesitant and stated that they would support the solar array on 

another piece of property as they would rather see the land near the Connexus site preserved for a 

business park.   

 

City Planner Anderson agreed that from an economic development perspective, Ramsey is short 

on industrial/business park land and therefore the remainder of the Connexus property may be 

desirable for that purpose.  He stated that discussion has brought this idea to the County owned 

land, which would be a good marriage of the County owned land and the solar array. 

 

Board Member Hiatt asked if there has been any feedback from the residents on Bowers Drive. 

 

Mr. Burandt stated that they have not spoken with the residents in that area yet but would be open 

to holding a public meeting. 

 

City Planner Anderson stated that if Connexus is interested, staff could open up City Hall earlier 

for an open house prior to the Planning Commission meeting for residents to ask more questions 

if desired.   

 

Mr. Burandt stated that he has not heard any negative comments about creating more renewable 

energy.   

 

Motion by Chairperson Stodola and seconded by Board Member Valentine to recommend 

approval of a Zoning Amendment to rezone the subject property to Public/Quasi Public and to add 

solar energy systems as a principal use with the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit.  

 

Motion carried.  Voting Yes: Chairperson Stodola, Board Member Valentine, Anderson, Covart, 

Hiatt, and Trossen.  Voting No: None.  Absent:  Board Member Bernard. 

 



 

 

Environmental Policy Board / August 21, 2017 

Page 4 of 5 

Motion by Board Member Valentine and seconded by Board Member Hiatt to recommend 

approval of a Conditional Use Permit for the installation of a solar energy system on the subject 

property with contingencies. 

 

Motion carried.  Voting Yes: Chairperson Stodola, Board Member Valentine, Hiatt, Anderson, 

Covart, and Trossen.  Voting No: None.  Absent:  Board Member Bernard. 

 

6. BOARD / STAFF INPUT 

 

 Staff Update 

 

Chairperson Stodola stated that he picked up a compostable kit the previous week and noted that 

he would recommend it.  He stated that he and his wife are really enjoying the process.   

 

City Planner Anderson confirmed that kits are still available.  He stated that 41 residents have 

signed up for the program, 32 of which have picked up their container.  He stated that people can 

sign up online or you can sign up at City Hall and pickup your kit at that time too.  He stated that 

during the summer recycling event he did an audit of the carts at the public works site and 

everything was extremely clean, except for one regular plastic bag that was used to store someone’s 

smaller compostable bags.  He stated that the City is working with Ace Solid Waste on a weekly 

or bi-weekly picking up of carts to cut down on things that could become a nuisance (smell and 

maggots) if you choose to have pickup only when the carts are full.  He stated that when people 

sign up for the program they are given the combination for the locks on the bins at the public works 

drop off location, which ensures that only people in the program have access to the bins and others 

are not using them to drop off other materials.  He explained the items that are included in the kit 

that residents receive when they sign up for the program.  

 

Board Member Hiatt asked if there would be a potential in the future for Ace to create a separate 

container that would be picked up curbside. 

 

City Planner Anderson stated that he does see the potential for curbside pickup in the future.  He 

noted that part of the concern is that there are two processing sites on the south side of the metro, 

so there is a logistics issue with serving the north metro.  He noted that Ace does provide that 

service to commercial businesses (food service) and so the Ramsey materials are measured and 

then combined with the commercial pickup material for drop off.  He noted that the City’s pilot 

program is off to a good start.  He stated that the City held the first ever summer recycling event 

in July, which was a carbon copy of the spring and fall events.  He stated that the event was 

relatively slow compared to the spring events but noted that it was a constant trickle of cars, with 

260 vehicles in total.  He noted that the total amount of traffic outpaced some of the fall events 

and noted that he will be interested to see if the additional event impacts the number of vehicles 

and materials collected during the fall event.   

 

7. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Motion by Board Member Valentine and seconded by Board Member Covart to adjourn the 

meeting. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 7:22 p.m. 



 

 

Environmental Policy Board / August 21, 2017 

Page 5 of 5 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

________________________________ 

Chris Anderson 

City Planner 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

JoAnn Shaw 

Community Development Secretary 

 

 

Drafted by Amanda Staple 

TimeSaver Off Site Secretarial, Inc. 

 


